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Place: National Institutes of Health, 
Neuroscience Center Building (NSC), 6001 
Executive Boulevard, Rockville, MD 20852 
(Virtual Meeting). 

Contact Person: Marcy Ellen Burstein, 
Ph.D., Scientific Review Officer, Division of 
Extramural Activities, National Institute of 
Mental Health, NIH Neuroscience Center, 
6001 Executive Blvd., Room 6143, MSC 9606, 
Bethesda, MD 20892–9606, 301–443–9699, 
bursteinme@mail.nih.gov. 

Name of Committee: National Institute of 
Mental Health Special Emphasis Panel; 
Pharma/Device Early Phase Clinical Trials. 

Date: October 22, 2019. 
Time: 11:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. 
Agenda: To review and evaluate grant 

applications. 
Place: National Institutes of Health, 

Neuroscience Center Building (NSC), 6001 
Executive Boulevard, Rockville, MD 20852 
(Virtual Meeting). 

Contact Person: David I. Sommers, Ph.D., 
Scientific Review Officer, Division of 
Extramural Activities, National Institute of 
Mental Health, National Institutes of Health, 
6001 Executive Blvd., Room 6154, MSC 9606, 
Bethesda, MD 20892, 301–443–7861, 
dsommers@mail.nih.gov. 

Name of Committee: National Institute of 
Mental Health Special Emphasis Panel; 
NIMH Biobehavioral Research Awards for 
Innovative New Scientists (NIMH BRAINS). 

Date: October 31, 2019. 
Time: 11:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 
Agenda: To review and evaluate grant 

applications. 
Place: National Institutes of Health, 

Neuroscience Center Building (NSC), 6001 
Executive Boulevard, Rockville, MD 20852. 

Contact Person: Erin E. Gray, Ph.D., 
Scientific Review Officer, Division of 
Extramural Activities, National Institute of 
Mental Health, National Institutes of Health, 
6001 Executive Boulevard, NSC 6152B, 
Bethesda, MD 20892, 301–402–8152, 
erin.gray@nih.gov. 
(Catalogue of Federal Domestic Assistance 
Program No. 93.242, Mental Health Research 
Grants, National Institutes of Health, HHS) 

Dated: September 11, 2019. 
Melanie J. Pantoja, 
Program Analyst, Office of Federal Advisory 
Committee Policy. 
[FR Doc. 2019–20031 Filed 9–16–19; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 4140–01–P 

INTERNATIONAL TRADE 
COMMISSION 

[Investigation No. 337–TA–1173] 

Certain Rotating 3–D LiDAR Devices, 
Components Thereof, and Sensing 
Systems Containing the Same; 
Institution of Investigation 

AGENCY: U.S. International Trade 
Commission. 
ACTION: Notice. 

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that a 
complaint was filed with the U.S. 

International Trade Commission on 
August 15, 2019, under section 337 of 
the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, on 
behalf of Velodyne Lidar, Inc. of San 
Jose, California. A supplement was filed 
on August 28, 2019. The complaint, as 
supplemented, alleges violations of 
section 337 based upon the importation 
into the United States, the sale for 
importation, and the sale within the 
United States after importation of 
certain rotating 3–D LiDAR devices, 
components thereof, and sensing 
systems containing the same by reason 
of infringement of certain claims of U.S. 
Patent No. 7,969,558 (‘‘the ’558 patent’’). 
The complaint further alleges that an 
industry in the United States exists as 
required by the applicable Federal 
Statute. The complainant requests that 
the Commission institute an 
investigation and, after the 
investigation, issue a limited exclusion 
order and cease and desist orders. 
ADDRESSES: The complaint, except for 
any confidential information contained 
therein, is available for inspection 
during official business hours (8:45 a.m. 
to 5:15 p.m.) in the Office of the 
Secretary, U.S. International Trade 
Commission, 500 E Street SW, Room 
112, Washington, DC 20436, telephone 
(202) 205–2000. Hearing impaired 
individuals are advised that information 
on this matter can be obtained by 
contacting the Commission’s TDD 
terminal on (202) 205–1810. Persons 
with mobility impairments who will 
need special assistance in gaining access 
to the Commission should contact the 
Office of the Secretary at (202) 205– 
2000. General information concerning 
the Commission may also be obtained 
by accessing its internet server at 
https://www.usitc.gov. The public 
record for this investigation may be 
viewed on the Commission’s electronic 
docket (EDIS) at https://edis.usitc.gov. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Katherine Hiner, Office of Docket 
Services, U.S. International Trade 
Commission, telephone (202) 205–1802. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The 
authority for institution of this 
investigation is contained in section 337 
of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, 
19 U.S.C. 1337, and in section 210.10 of 
the Commission’s Rules of Practice and 
Procedure, 19 CFR 210.10 (2019). 

Scope of Investigation: Having 
considered the complaint, the U.S. 
International Trade Commission, on 
September 10, 2019, ORDERED THAT— 

(1) Pursuant to subsection (b) of 
section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as 
amended, an investigation be instituted 
to determine whether there is a 
violation of subsection (a)(1)(B) of 

section 337 in the importation into the 
United States, the sale for importation, 
or the sale within the United States after 
importation of certain products 
identified in paragraph (2) by reason of 
infringement of one or more of claims 
1–4 and 6–25 of the ’558 patent; and 
whether an industry in the United 
States exists as required by subsection 
(a)(2) of section 337; 

(2) Pursuant to section 210.10(b)(1) of 
the Commission’s Rules of Practice and 
Procedure, 19 CFR 210.10(b)(1), the 
plain language description of the 
accused products or category of accused 
products, which defines the scope of the 
investigation, is ‘‘(a) rotating 3–D LiDAR 
devices, (b) components thereof, and (c) 
sensing systems containing the same’’; 

(3) For the purpose of the 
investigation so instituted, the following 
are hereby named as parties upon which 
this notice of investigation shall be 
served: 

(a) The complainant is: Velodyne 
Lidar, Inc., 5521 Hellyer Avenue, San 
Jose, CA 95138 

(b) The respondents are the following 
entities alleged to be in violation of 
section 337, and are the parties upon 
which the complaint is to be served: 
Hesai Photonics Technology Co., Ltd., 

Building L2 Hongqiao World Center, 
1588Zhuguang Rd., Qingpu Dist., 
Shanghai, 201702 China 

Suteng Innovation Technology Co., Ltd., 
(a.k.a. RoboSense), RoboSense 
Building, Block 1, South of 
Zhongguan Honghualing Industrial 
District, No. 1213 Liuxian Avenue, 
Taoyuan Street, Nanshan District, 
Shenzhen, Guangdong, 518000, 
China. 

(4) For the investigation so instituted, 
the Chief Administrative Law Judge, 
U.S. International Trade Commission, 
shall designate the presiding 
Administrative Law Judge. 

The Office of Unfair Import 
Investigations will not participate as a 
party in this investigation. 

Responses to the complaint and the 
notice of investigation must be 
submitted by the named respondents in 
accordance with section 210.13 of the 
Commission’s Rules of Practice and 
Procedure, 19 CFR 210.13. Pursuant to 
19 CFR 201.16(e) and 210.13(a), such 
responses will be considered by the 
Commission if received not later than 20 
days after the date of service by the 
Commission of the complaint and the 
notice of investigation. Extensions of 
time for submitting responses to the 
complaint and the notice of 
investigation will not be granted unless 
good cause therefor is shown. 
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Failure of a respondent to file a timely 
response to each allegation in the 
complaint and in this notice may be 
deemed to constitute a waiver of the 
right to appear and contest the 
allegations of the complaint and this 
notice, and to authorize the 
administrative law judge and the 
Commission, without further notice to 
the respondent, to find the facts to be as 
alleged in the complaint and this notice 
and to enter an initial determination 
and a final determination containing 
such findings, and may result in the 
issuance of an exclusion order or a cease 
and desist order or both directed against 
the respondent. 

By order of the Commission. 
Issued: September 11, 2019. 

Lisa Barton, 
Secretary to the Commission. 
[FR Doc. 2019–20023 Filed 9–16–19; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 7020–02–P 

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

Notice of Lodging of Proposed 
Consent Decree Under the Clean Air 
Act 

On August 23, 2019, the Department 
of Justice lodged a proposed Consent 
Decree with the United States District 
Court for the Middle District of Florida 
in the lawsuit entitled United States of 
America v. Southeastern Grocers, Inc., 
BI–LO, LLC, and Winn-Dixie Stores, Inc., 
Civil Action No. 3:19–cv–00988–MMH– 
MCR. 

The United States filed this lawsuit 
under the Clean Air Act. The United 
States’ complaint seeks injunctive relief 
and civil penalties for violations of the 
regulations governing the service and 
repair of commercial refrigeration 
appliances that use ozone-depleting 
refrigerant and for violations of the 
recording keeping regulations. The 
consent decree requires Defendants to 
perform injunctive relief related to 
refrigeration equipment at 
approximately 576 stores and pay a 
$300,000 civil penalty. 

The publication of this notice opens 
a period for public comment on the 
Consent Decree. Comments should be 
addressed to the Assistant Attorney 
General, Environment and Natural 
Resources Division, and should refer to 
United States of America v. 
Southeastern Grocers, Inc., BI–LO, LLC, 
and Winn-Dixie Stores, Inc., D.J. Ref. 
No. 90–5–2–1–11839. All comments 
must be submitted no later than thirty 
(30) days after the publication date of 
this notice. Comments may be 
submitted either by email or by mail: 

To submit 
comments: Send them to: 

By email ......... pubcomment-ees.enrd@
usdoj.gov. 

By mail ........... Assistant Attorney General, 
U.S. DOJ—ENRD, P.O. 
Box 7611, Washington, 
DC 20044–7611. 

During the public comment period, 
the Consent Decree may be examined 
and downloaded at this Justice 
Department website: https://
www.justice.gov/enrd/consent-decrees. 
We will provide a paper copy of the 
Consent Decree upon written request 
and payment of reproduction costs. 
Please mail your request and payment 
to: Consent Decree Library, U.S. DOJ— 
ENRD, P.O. Box 7611, Washington, DC 
20044–7611. 

Please enclose a check or money order 
for $20.00 (25 cents per page 
reproduction cost) payable to the United 
States Treasury. For a paper copy 
without the appendix and signature 
pages, the cost is $11.00. 

Henry Friedman, 
Assistant Section Chief, Environmental 
Enforcement Section, Environment and 
Natural Resources Division. 
[FR Doc. 2019–20001 Filed 9–16–19; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 4410–15–P 

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 

Bureau of Labor Statistics 

Data Users Advisory Committee; 
Request for Nominations 

AGENCY: Bureau of Labor Statistics 
(BLS), Department of Labor. 
ACTION: Request for nominations to the 
BLS Data Users Advisory Committee. 

SUMMARY: The BLS is soliciting new 
members for its Data Users Advisory 
Committee (DUAC). The current 
membership expired on January 15, 
2018. The DUAC provides advice to the 
Bureau of Labor Statistics from the 
points of view of data users from 
various sectors of the U.S. economy, 
including the labor, business, research, 
academic, and government 
communities, on matters related to the 
analysis, dissemination, and use of the 
Bureau’s statistics, on its published 
reports, and on gaps between or the 
need for new Bureau statistics. The 
Committee will consist of 20 members 
and will be chosen from a cross-section 
of individuals who represent a balance 
of expertise across a broad range of BLS 
program areas, including employment 
and unemployment statistics, 

occupational safety and health statistics, 
compensation measures, price indexes, 
and productivity measures; or other 
areas related to the subject matter of 
BLS programs. BLS invites persons 
interested in serving on the DUAC to 
submit their names for consideration for 
committee membership. 
DATES: Nominations for the DUAC 
membership should be postmarked 
October 17, 2019. 
ADDRESSES: Nominations for the DUAC 
membership should be sent to: 
Commissioner William W. Beach, U.S. 
Bureau of Labor Statistics, 2 
Massachusetts Avenue NE, Room 4040, 
Washington, DC 20212, or as email 
attachments to DUACnominations@
bls.gov. If submitting electronically, 
please submit in Word or PDF format. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Kathy Mele, Deputy Associate 
Commissioner, U.S. Bureau of Labor 
Statistics, 2 Massachusetts Avenue NE, 
Office of Publications and Special 
Studies, Room 2850. Washington, DC 
20212. Telephone: (202)691–6102. This 
is not a toll free number. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: BLS 
intends to renew membership in the 
DUAC for another three years. The BLS 
operates over two dozen surveys that 
measure employment and 
unemployment, compensation, worker 
safety, productivity, and consumer and 
producer price movements. BLS 
provides a wealth of economic data and 
analyses to support public and private 
decision making. The DUAC was 
established to provide advice to the 
Commissioner of Labor Statistics on the 
priorities of data users, suggestions 
concerning the addition of new 
programs, changes in emphasis of 
existing programs or cessation of 
obsolete programs, and advice on 
potential innovations in data analysis, 
dissemination, and presentation. 

Nominations: BLS is looking for 
committed DUAC members who have a 
strong interest in, and familiarity with, 
BLS data. The Agency is looking for 
nominees who use and have a 
comprehensive understanding of 
economic statistics. The U.S. Bureau of 
Labor Statistics is committed to bringing 
greater diversity of thought, perspective, 
and experience to its advisory 
committees. Nominees from all races, 
gender, age, and disabilities are 
encouraged to apply. Interested persons 
may nominate themselves or may 
submit the name of another person who 
they believe to be interested in and 
qualified to serve on the DUAC. 
Nominations may also be submitted by 
organizations. Nominations should 
include the name, address, and 
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